
March 2, 1933

Governor Mover presented to the Board the following let-

ter dated March 2, from the President of the United States, which

had been delivered to his office during the dinner hour:

"To the Governor and Directors of
The Federal Reserve Board,
Washington, D. C.

Gentlemen:

"I understand that the Board is meeting this
evening to consider recommending to me the use of the
emergency powers under Section 5 of the Enemy Trading
Act as amended, for the purpose of limiting the use
of coin and currency to necessary purposes. I shall
be glad to have the advice of the Board. If it is
the view of the Board that these powers should be ex-
erted 1 would be glad to have your recommendation
accompanied by a form of proclamation, as it would
seem to me it should be issued by me before banking
hours tomorrow morning.

"I also take this occasion to acknowledge the
receipt of your letter of February 28th. I am famil-
iar with the inherent dangers in any form of federal
guarantee of banking deposits, but I am wondering
whether or not the situation has reached the time
when the Board should give further consideration to
this possibility. I am enclosing herewith a rough
outline of a method upon which I should like to have
the Board advise me.

Yours faithfully,
(Signed) Herbert Hoover."

Action upon the President's letter was deferred so that

the members of the Board might give it further consideration, al-

though various aspects of the plan referred to therein, which is

attached to the letter in the files of the Board, were discussed.
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Governor Meyer reported that, shortly before the dinner

hour. Secretary Mills had communicated with Attorney General

Mitchell with regard to the authority of the President to declare

a bank holiday under the provisions of the Trading with the Enemy

Act of October 6, 1917, and had arranged for Mr. Harlan, Legal

Assistant to the Undersecretary, and Mr. Wyatt, to discuss the

matter with him. He stated, also, that Mr. Wyatt had reported to

him that, after considerable discussion of the legal and other as-

pects of the question, the Attorney General had authorized Messrs.

Harlan and Wyatt to tell the Secretary of the Treasury that there

is sufficient color of authority under section 5 of the Trading

with the Enemy Act to Justify the President in talcing action under

it if he felt that the emergency justified it} and that the Attorney

General was then in Mr. Mills' office working on a draft of a procla-

mation or executive order, with the assistance of Mr. Wyatt, Mr.

Morrill, and Mr. Harlan.

During the course of the meeting, all phases of the bank-

ing situation were canvassed, and Mr. Mills advised the Board that

the Attorney General had stated that while he thought the President

could act under the provisions of section 5 of the Trading with the

Enemy Act if he deemed the emergency great enough, the matter was

not free from doubt and he did not feel that he should advise the

President to do so without the consent and approval of the incoming

administration.

Digitized for FRASER 
http://fraser.stlouisfed.org/ 
Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis



-3-

It was the unanimous view of the Board that the situation

demanded that a banking holiday be declared for Friday, Saturday,

and Monday, and that such action should be taken with the under-

standing that Congress would be called in session on Monday for

the purpose of passing not later than Tuesday some form of legis-

lation that would be agreed upon not later than Monday morning.

Mr. Mills, who had been in touch by telephone earlier with the

President and Mr. Woodin, Secretary of the Treasury designate, so

advised Mr. Woodin over the telephone at 11:10 p.m. in the presence

of all those named, and of Mr. Ballantine, Mr. Awalt, and Mr.

Douglas, who had entered the meeting a short time prior thereto.

Subsequently word was received that no action would be taken in

the matter tonight, and thereupon the meeting adjourned.
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THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

March 2, 1933.

To the Governor and Directors of
The Federal Reserve Board,
Washington, D. C.

Gentlemen:

I understand that the Board is meeting
this evening to consider recommending to me the use
of the emergency powers under Section 5 of the Enemy
Trading Act as amended, for the purpose of limiting
the use of coin and currency to necessary purposes.
1 shall be glad to have the advice of the Board.
If it is the view of the Board that these powers
should be exerted I would be glad to have your
recommendation accompanied by a form of proclamation,
as it would seem to me it should be issued by me
before banking hours tomorrow morning.

I also take this occasion to acknowledge the
receipt of your letter of February 28th. I am
familiar with the inherent dangers in any form of
federal guarantee of banking deposits, but I am
wondering whether or not the situation has reached
the time when the Board should give further consideration
to this possibility. I am enclosing herewith a rough
outline of a method upon which I should like to have the
Board advise me.

[See minutes]

Yours faithfully,
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